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SECRETARY OF LABOR, . CIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH :
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , : Docket No. VA 92-132
Petitioner . A.C. No. 44-06259-03565
V. :

Greenbrier Mne No. 1
HARMAN M NI NG CORPORATI ON
Respondent

DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Patrick L. DePace, Esqg., Ofice of the
Solicitor, U S. Departnent of Labor
Arlington, Virginia, for Petitioner
Thomas C. Means, Esq., Crowell and Moring,
Washi ngton, D.C., for Respondent

Bef or e: Judge Melick

This case is before me upon the petition for civi
penalties filed by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to
Section 105(d) of the Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Act
of 1977, 30 U.S.C 801, et seq., the "Act," charging the
Harman M ni ng Corporation (Harman), in its original form
with two violations in a citation and order issued pursuant
to Section 104(d)(1) of the Act.1 The mandatory standard

1 Section 104(d) (1) of the Act provides as foll ows:

If, upon any inspection of a coal or
ot her mine, an authorized representative of the
Secretary finds that there has been a violation
of any mandatory health or safety standard, and
if he also finds that, while the conditions
created by such violation do not cause inmm nent
danger, such violation is of such nature as could
significantly and substantially contribute to the
cause and effect of a coal or other mne safety
or health hazard, and if he finds such violation
to be caused by an unwarrantable failure of such
operator to conmply with such nmandatory health or

safety standards, he shall include such finding
in any citation given to the operator under this
Act. If, during the sanme inspection or any

subsequent inspection of such mne within 90 days
after the issuance of such citation, an authorized
representative of the Secretary finds such violation
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originally charged in both the citation and order

30 C.F.R [O75.520, requires that "all electric equipnent
shall be provided with switches or other controls that
are safely designed, constructed, and installed."”

The citation at issue (No. 3783586) charges as foll ows:

The 240 volt punp cable supplying power to the
wat er punp on the 5th Right Section did not

have a plug-in installed on the end of the cable.
The bare wires were stuck into the receptacle

on the power center

The order at issue (No. 3783587) charges as foll ows:

The 240 volt punp cable supplying power to the
wat er punp at the mouth of 5th right did not
have a plug-in installed on the end of the cable.
The bare wires were stuck into the receptacle on
the belt transfornmer box.

On July 24, 1992, the Secretary noved to amend her
petition in this case to charge, based on the sanme all eged
facts, that a different standard, 30 C F.R [75.514, had
been violated in the citation and order.2 The standard
at 30 C.F.R [O75.514 provides as foll ows.

Al'l electric connections or splices in
conductors shall be nechanically and
el ectronically efficient, and suitable

fn. 1 (continued)

to be al so caused by an unwarrantable failure of
such operator to so conply, he shall forthwith

i ssue an order requiring the operator to cause al
persons in the area affected by such violation
except those persons referred to subsection (c)
to be withdrawn from and to be prohibited from
entering such area until an authorized represen-
tative of the Secretary determ nes that such

vi ol ati on has been abat ed.

2 It appears that the issuing inspector had attenpted
to make the sane nodifications on June 16, 1992, prior to the
filing with the Conmm ssion on July 24, 1992, of the instant
petition for civil penalty. The Conm ssion noted in Womn ng
Fuel Conpany, 14 FMSHRC 1202 (1992), that such attenpted
nodi fications are actually proposed anendnents to the initia
citation simlar to an anendnent of pleadi ngs under the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
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connectors shall be used. All electrica
connections or splices in insulated wire
shall be insulated at least to the sane degree
of protection as the remai nder of the wre.

Har man opposes the Secretary's notion and, in a notion
to dismss, argues that it would suffer |egal prejudice
by the anmendnents.

Regarding the Secretary's authority to nmodify or amend
chargi ng documents such as citations, the Comm ssion recently
stated in Secretary v. Wom ng Fuel Conpany, 14 FMSHRC 1282
(1992), as follows:

Section 104(a) citations are essentially
"conplaints' by the Secretary alleging

vi ol ati ons of mandatory standards. The
Secretary's attenpted nodifications,

al I egi ng, based on the sane facts, that

a different standard had been violated, are
essentially proposed "amendnents" to the
initial conplaints, i.e., citations. The
Commi ssi on has previously anal ogi zed t he
nodi fication of a citation to an anendnent

of pleadings under Fed. R Civ. P. 15(a)

[ Footnote omitted]. Cyprus Enpire Corp.

12 FMSHRC 911, 916 (May 1990). In Cyprus
Enpire, where the operator conceded that it
was not prejudiced thereby, the Comr ssion
affirmed the trial judge's nodification of a
term nated citation to allege violation of a
di fferent standard. |ID.

In Federal civil proceedings, |eave for amend-
ment "shall be freely given when justice so
requires." Fed. R Civ. P. 15(a). The weight

of authority under Rule 15(a) is that amendnents
are to be liberally granted unless the noving
party has been guilty of bad faith, has acted

for the purpose of delay, or where the trial of
the issue will be unduly delayed. See 3 J. Moore,
R. Freer, Moore's Federal Practice, Par. 15.08[2],
15-47 to 15 49 (2d ed 1991) ("More's"). And, as
expl ained in Cyprus Enpire, legally recognizable
prejudice to the operator woul d bar otherw se
perm ssi bl e nodification

It is not argued in this case that the Secretary has
been guilty of bad faith or that she has acted for the
pur pose of delay, nor is it alleged that the trial of the
i ssue woul d be unduly del ayed by the proposed anmendnents.
Har man mai nt ai ns, however, that it would suffer |ega
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prejudice if the proposed anmendnments (nodifications)
were permitted. Under the unique facts of this case | agree.

It is undisputed that when the citation and order
were i ssued the m ne was no |onger in production and
was already in the process of pernmanent abandonnent.
Subsequently, after the term nation of the origina
citation and order, the cited punp, power center, and
el ectrical connecting cables were di sassenbl ed and the
punps and power centers sent to an off-sight storage
| ocation in furtherance of the planned abandonnent.

On May 9, 1992, the nmine fan was turned off, the mne
openi ngs were fenced off, and by May 16, 1992, the

m ne was physically sealed. Since then the m ne has
been inaccessible with the cited electrical connecting
cabl es seal ed inside.

It is further undi sputed that on or about My 11
1992, the Mne Safety and Health Admi nistration (MSHA)
was informed that the mne had been closed as of May 9,
1992, and permanently abandoned. The first nodification
of the citation and order was not attenpted by MSHA
until June 16, 1992, nore than one nmonth after the
seal i ng and permanent abandonnent of the mne

Har man supports its clainms of prejudice in this
case in large part on the testinony of Harman's highly
qualified expert wi tness, Larry Hanmbrick. Hanbrick
a graduate electrical engineer, is a former assistant
prof essor of electrical engineering technol ogy and chief
el ectrical engineer for the Island Creek Coal Conpany.
He is presently a senior project engineer for the
West i nghouse El ectric Corporation.

Hanbri ck opined that the original charges in the
citation and order under 30 C.F.R 0O 75.520 could readily
be defended without the need for testing or investigation
According to Hanbrick, cable term nation plugs are not in
fact switches or controls within the nmeaning of that
section. Hanbrick testified that if faced with charges
under 30 C.F.R 0O 75.514, however, further investigation
and testing woul d be necessary. |In particular, he opined
that it would be necessary to study the connection that
was nmade and exami ne any exposed conductors to detern ne
how far the conductors were stripped and how far the
conductors were inserted into the connection -- questions
relevant to the efficiency and suitability of the connection
and exposure to a hazard and critical to the "significant
and substantial"” and gravity issues.
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Hanbrick further noted that to defend agai nst
charges under section 75.514, he woul d have perforned
i nfra-scanning tests to determ ne whether any "hot spots”
or inefficient connections existed. He observed that it
was possible that the wires inserted in the receptacle
were indeed efficient and that it woul d have been possible
to fasten the wires inside the receptacle to nmake good
contact. Accordingly, he noted that it would al so be
essential to have exami ned the power center and the wire
cable that was actually in use.

Hanbrick further noted that to properly defend
agai nst charges under section 75.514, it would also be
essential to exam ne the circuit breaker to determ ne
anong ot her things, whether the equi pment had a ground
fault device and the size of the circuit breaker to
deternmi ne what, if any, hazard m ght have existed under
the circunstances. Hanbrick indicated that he would al so
have tested and exami ned the cable, including the stranding,
to determine its flexibility. He opined that it would have
al so been inportant to not only test the circuit breaker
and ground fault capabilities of the power center but also
determ ne access to the receptacle, i.e., was it in a
| ocati on where people could cone into contact with it.

Regardi ng the i ssue of nechanical efficiency,
Hanbri ck opined that it would al so have been inportant
to know what, if any, strain relief was provided on the
cable. Hanmbrick noted that whether a chai ned device or
kel l em grips were used would be relevant to this question
Fi nal ly, Hanbrick opined that "plug-ins" are distribution
devi ces and not control devices and that, indeed, there
is such a separation in the field of electrical engineering
bet ween power controls and power distribution that they
are separate disciplines of study into which
el ectrical engineers nmay specialize.

Wthin this framework of evidence, | conclude that
i ndeed Harman M ning Corporation would suffer legally
cogni zabl e prejudice if the Secretary was granted her
notion to anmend the petition for civil penalty in this
case to change the charges in the citation and order
fromthose under the standard at 30 C.F.R 0O 75.520
to charges under the standard at 30 C.F. R 0O 75.514.
From the essentially undi sputed evidence it is clear
that Harman coul d reasonably have believed that charges
under the standard at Section 75.520 could have readily
been defended on the grounds that the plug-in device was
not a control or switch within the meani ng of that standard.
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Har man woul d t herefore not have found it necessary to
perform any tests, or, for that matter, pay any particul ar
attention to the specific facts surrounding the alleged
viol ation. Upon the subsequent sealing and abandonment

of the mne and the undisputed inability to reconstruct
the cited equi pnment, power center, cables, and other
conditions critical to issues that clearly would becone
rel evant to new charges under Section 75.514, Harman woul d
be at extrene disadvantage in attenpting to defend itself.
It would indeed suffer |egal prejudice by the proposed
amendment .

Under the circunstances, the Secretary's notion to
amend is DENIED. In light of this determ nation the
Secretary is directed to notify the undersigned and counse
for Harman M ning Corporation, in witing, within 15 days
of the date of this Decision, whether she intends to proceed
on the original charges under 30 C F.R [520 in Citation
No. 3783586 and Order No. 3783587.

Gary Melick

Adm ni strative Law Judge

703-756- 6261
Di stribution:
Patrick L. DePace, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U. S. Departnent
of Labor, 4015 W/ son Boul evard, Room 516, Arlington, VA 22203
(Certified Mail)

Thomas C. Means, Esq., Crowell and Mring, 1001 Pennsyl vania
Ave., N.W, Washington, D.C. 20004-2595 (Certified Mil)

/1h



